
 
September 29, 2023  11:35:50 PM 
 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2023 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET 
PLYMOUTH, NC  27962 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda Approving: 

a) RESO 2023-026 Opioid Settlement Spending Authorization (Revised) 
b) RESO 2023-027 Operation Green Light 
c) RESO 2023-028 Increase in PK-12 School Project Change Order Authority 
d) RESO 2023-029 Surplus Real Property- 134 Daisy Lane 
e) RESO 2023-030 Surplus Real Property- 90 Cumberland St. 
f) RESO 2023-031 Surplus Real Property- 203 West Ave. 
g) RESO 2023-032 Surplus Real Property- 403 Hortontown Rd. 
h) SCADA System Bids 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3–5-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Departmental Information Update:  Ms. Jennifer O’Neal, EMS Director 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM  DSS Child Support Program Staffing, Clifton Hardison, DSS Director and/or Lynn Swett, 

DSS Deputy Director 
 
Item 5 7:00 PM Emergency Management Building/Government Center, C.S. Potter CM/CA and/or John 

Spruill, Commissioner 
 
Item 6 7:10 PM Employee Appreciation Events & Schedule, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 7 7:20 PM Boards & Committees, Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 

a) Senior Advisory Committee 
   
Item 8 7:30 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, CFO 
 
Item 9 7:40 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 

 
Item 10 7:50 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-

client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
Recess/Adjourn 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 1 

 

ITEM: Consent Agenda 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

a) RESO 2023-026 Opioid Settlement Spending Authorization (Revised) (see attached) 
 

b) RESO 2023-027 Operation Green Light (see attached) 
 

c) RESO 2023-028 Increase in PK-12 School Project Change Order Authority (see attached) 
 

d) RESO 2023-029 Surplus Real Property- 134 Daisy Lane  (see attached) 
e) RESO 2023-030 Surplus Real Property- 90 Cumberland St. (see attached) 
f) RESO 2023-031 Surplus Real Property- 203 West Ave. (see attached) 
g) RESO 2023-032 Surplus Real Property- 403 Hortontown Rd. (see attached) 

 
h) SCADA System Bids  (see attached) 

 
- County staff identified replacing the automated SCADA system as one of the highest 

priority CIP items for the water utility system.  Staff have been working with our on-
call utilities engineering firm (Wooten Engineering) to facilitate this replacement.   
 

- $225k in capital funding was allocated for this project as part of the FY24 budget.   
 

- Wooten conducted advertisements for bids and made direct solicitations for responses 
from known qualified firms in the industry.   
 

- After only one bid was initially received, this process was repeated which led to the 
same result of one bidder submitting a bid.   
 

- Due to the high priority of completing this project, and the fact that the one bid 
received was within the allocated budget, staff recommends voting to approve 
Wooten’s recommendation to proceed with awarding the bid to the bidder as described 
in the attached materials. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 

RESOLUTION 2023-026 
TO DIRECT THE EXPENDITURE OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 

WHEREAS Washington County has joined national settlement agreements with companies 
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution, and dispensing of opioids. 
 

WHEREAS the allocation, use, and reporting of funds stemming from these national settlement 
agreements and bankruptcy resolutions (“Opioid Settlement Funds”) are governed by the Memorandum 
of Agreement Between the State of North Carolina and Local Governments on Proceeds Relating to the 
Settlement of Opioid Litigation (“MOA”) and the Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds from 
Additional Settlements of Opioid Litigation (“SAAF”); 
 

WHEREAS Washington County has received Opioid Settlement Funds pursuant to these 
national settlement agreements and deposited the Opioid Settlement Funds in a separate special revenue 
fund as required by section D of the MOA; 
 

WHEREAS section E.6 of the MOA states that, before spending opioid settlement funds, the 
local government’s governing body must adopt a resolution that:  

 
(i) indicates that it is an authorization for expenditure of opioid settlement funds; and,  
(ii) states the specific strategy or strategies the county or municipality intends to fund 

pursuant to Option A or Option B, using the item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or 
Exhibit B to identify each funded strategy; and,  

(iii) states the amount dedicated to each strategy for a specific period of time. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, in alignment with the NC MOA and SAAF, Washington 
County authorizes the expenditure of opioid settlement funds as follows: 
 
1. First strategy re-authorized/ratified*: 

a. Name of strategy: Recovery Support Services (A3) 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 3 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $5,000.00 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place: Start date July 1, 2022 through End 
date June 30, 2023* 

*The expenditure of this sum during the prior fiscal year/period stated above (as 
previously authorized in a Project Grant Ordinance adopted on or about June 6, 2022 
which also incorrectly identified the relevant program as a Criminal Justice Diversion 
Program) is hereby re-approved and ratified by the Board to the extent required by law to 
comply with recently issued DOJ/LGC guidance concerning  use of Project Grant 
Ordinances to account for & expend opioid settlement funds. 

f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help fund the 
Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department Grant Funded 2nd Judicial District 
Drug Recovery Court Program (see attached 1 page overview) 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

2. Second strategy authorized: 
a. Name of strategy: Recovery Support Services (A3) 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 3 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $5,000.00 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place: Start date July 1, 2023 through End 

date June 30, 2024 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: County contribution/match to help fund the 

Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department Grant Funded 2nd Judicial District 
Drug Recovery Court Program (see attached 1 page overview) 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

3. Third strategy authorized 
a. Name of strategy: Naloxone Distribution (A7) 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 7 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $10,615.10 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place: Start date January 1, 2024 through 

End date December 31, 2024 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: Funding will support a Health Educator II 

position focused on opioids and a naloxone distribution project through our “Hope 
Exchange” harm reduction program.  These funds will be used as a match for funds from 
Vital Strategies to support naloxone distribution. 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 
 

4. Fourth strategy authorized 
a. Name of strategy: Syringe Service Program (A9) 
b. Strategy is included in Exhibit A 
c. Item letter and/or number in Exhibit A or Exhibit B to the MOA: 9 
d. Amounted authorized for this strategy: $10,615.09 
e. Period of time during which expenditure may take place: Start date January 1, 2024 through 

End date December 31, 2024 
f. Description of the program, project, or activity: Funding will support a Health Educator II 

position focused on opioids and the “Hope Exchange” harm reduction program.  These funds 
will be used as a match for funds from Vital Strategies to support harm reduction SSPs. 

g. Provider: Martin-Tyrrell-Washington (MTW) Health Department 



Page 3 of 3 

For informational purposes only: Note that Items 3 and 4 above represent funding the second calendar 
year of a multi-year grant-funded combined Naloxone Distribution/Syringe Service Program 
administered by MTW for Washington County.  The first calendar year’s funding of $21,230.19 (split 
identically between strategy A7 and A9 as shown above) was previously authorized via Resolution 
2023-008.   

The total dollar amount of Opioid Settlement Funds appropriated across the above named and authorized 
strategies to date are as follows: 

$21,230.19 Previously authorized by Resolution 2023-008 

$5,000  Re-authorized/Ratified by this Resolution 2023-026 Strategy 1 
$5,000  Authorized by this Resolution 2023-026 Strategy 2 
$10,615.10 Authorized by this Resolution 2023-026 Strategy 3 
$10,615.09 Authorized by this Resolution 2023-026 Strategy 4 
$31,230.19 Total authorized by this Resolution 2023-026 

$52,460.38 Grand Total of all authorized Opioid Settlement Funds to date. 

Adopted this the 2nd day of October, 2023. 

__________________________________________ 
Julius Walker Jr., Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board 

(COUNTY SEAL)



Page 1 of 2 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 

 
RESOLUTION 2023-027 

SUPPORTING OPERATION GREEN LIGHT FOR VETERANS 

 

WHEREAS, the residents of Washington County have great respect, admiration, and the utmost 
gratitude for all the men and women who have selflessly served our country and this community in the 
Armed Forces; and 

WHEREAS, the contributions and sacrifices of those who served in the Armed Forces have been vital in 
maintaining the freedoms and way of life enjoyed by our citizens; and 

WHEREAS, Washington County seeks to honor individuals who have made countless sacrifices for 
freedom by placing themselves in harm’s way for the good of all; and 

WHEREAS, veterans continue to serve our community in the American Legion, Veterans of Foreign 
Wars, religious groups, civil service, and by functioning as County Veterans Service Officers in 29 
states to help fellow former service members access more than $52 billion in federal health, disability 
and compensation benefits each year; and 

WHEREAS, Approximately 200,000 service members transition to civilian communities annually; and 

WHEREAS, an estimated 20 percent increase of service members will transition to civilian life in the 
near future; and 

WHEREAS, studies indicate that 44-72 percent of service members experience high levels of stress 
during transition from military to civilian life; and 

WHEREAS, active military service members transitioning from military service are at a high risk for 
suicide during their first year after military service; and 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, the National Association of Counties encourages all counties, parishes and boroughs to 
recognize Operation Green Light for Veterans; and 

WHEREAS, Washington County appreciates the sacrifices of our United States military personnel and 
believes specific recognition should be granted;  

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. That Washington County hereby declares October through Veterans Day, November 11th 2023 a 
time to salute and honor the service and sacrifices of our men and women in uniform 
transitioning from active service; and 
 

2. That in observance of Operation Green Light, Washington County encourages its citizens in 
patriotic tradition to recognize the importance of honoring all those who made immeasurable 
sacrifices to preserve freedom by displaying green lights in a window of their place of business 
or residence from November 6th through the 12th, 2023. 
 

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 

 

  

       __________________________________________ 

       Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________  (COUNTY SEAL) 

 
Clerk to the Board 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 

 
RESOLUTION 2023-028 

INCREASE IN PK-12 SCHOOL PROJECT CHANGE ORDER AUTHORITY 

 

WHEREAS, Section 7(g) of the FY24 County Budget Ordinance adopted on or about June 5th, 2023 
grants the County Manager the authority “To approve change orders for contracts approved by the 
Board up to $30,000 per occurrence without exceeding the total allocated budget for any project.  Any 
such approvals shall be reported to the Board at or before its next regular meeting”; and 

WHEREAS, the amount of such authority is based in part on the anticipated “normal” scale of budgeted 
projects or capital expenses throughout each fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, Washington County and the Washington County School District are currently working 
together with Metcon, Inc. (Metcon) to construct a consolidated PK-12 School facility which is 
presently under construction and scheduled for completion in late 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the current budget for the project has a guaranteed maximum price of approximately 
$68,863,891 with an additional contingency of approximately $1,721,597 which is considerably larger 
than any capital project undertaken by Washington County; and 

WHEREAS, capital projects of such size and complexity can generate frequent and often time-sensitive 
minor change order requests, which are larger than traditionally received from smaller scale projects, but 
are still considered relatively minor compared to the overall larger scale of such project and its budget; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is considered relatively standard practice for governing boards overseeing such unusually 
large or complex public infrastructure projects, to grant additional authority authorizing designated 
agents to approve change order requests in higher than typical amounts still within budgetary limits; and 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, this practice is intended to avoid unnecessary delays in project completion that could result 
from otherwise having to notice, convene, and conduct multiple public meetings to individually review 
and approve an excessively large quantity of potentially time-sensitive but still relatively minor change 
order requests given the larger scale of such projects; and 

WHEREAS, the County Manager and the Superintendent of Washington County Schools have jointly 
recommended to their respective boards that they be granted the limited authority to jointly approve 
change order requests for this specific project of up to $100,000 provided such amount is still within the 
overall project budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to grant such authority, subject to certain limitations identified below. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. That the County Manager is hereby granted the authority to approve change order requests 
presented by Metcon related solely to its construction of the new PK-12 School Project, of up to 
$100,000 per occurrence (and also in the aggregate prior to the next regularly scheduled board 
meeting thereafter) where any and all such approvals shall be reported to the Board; provided 
however 
 

a. That the amount(s) approved shall not result in the total modified contract amount 
exceeding the total allocated budget for the project at any time; and provided further 

 
b. That prior to approving any such change order(s), the County Manager shall first obtain 

the written approval thereof from the Superintendent of Washington County Schools.  
 

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 

 

  

       __________________________________________ 

       Julius Walker, Jr., Chair 
       Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________  (COUNTY SEAL) 

 
Clerk to the Board 

 

 







































2451-BN : 2/20/2023 00510-1 Notice of Award 
 

EJCDC No. C-510 (2007 Edition) Prepared by the Engineers' Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by the 
Associated General Contractors of America and the Construction Specifications Institute. 

Notice of Award  
 Project:: 
  Washington County SCADA Improvements 
 Owner: 
        

 Date: 
        

Owner: 
  Washington County 

Owner’s Contract No.: 
        

Contract: 
  1 

Engineer's Project No.: 
  2451-BN 

Bidder: 
  Custom Controls Unlimited, LLC 
Bidder's Address: (send Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 
  2600 Garner Station Blvd. 
 
  Raleigh, NC 27603 
 
 

 You are notified that your Bid dated September 14, 2023 for the above Contract has been 
considered.  You are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for the following: 

Washington County SCADA Improvement Project 

 The Contract Price of your Contract is Two Hundred Twenty-Three Thousand One Hundred Seven 
Dollars ($223,107.00). 

 3 copies of the proposed Contract Documents (except Drawings) accompany this Notice of Award. 

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 10 days of the date you receive this 
Notice of Award. 

1. Deliver to the Owner 3 fully executed counterparts of the Contract Documents. 

2. Deliver with the executed Contract Documents the Contract Bonds as specified in the Instructions to 
Bidders, General Conditions Paragraph 5.01, and Supplementary Conditions Paragraph SC-5.01. 

3. Other conditions precedent: 

       

       

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in 
default, annul this Notice of Award and declare your Bid security forfeited. 

 Within 10 days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully 
executed counterpart of the Contract Documents. 

  Washington County  
 Owner 

 By:    
 Authorized Signature 

    
 Title 

Copy to Engineer 

Acceptance of Notice 
Receipt of the above Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged by   

this the    day of   , 20 . 

By:       

Title:       



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 2 

ITEM: Public Forum (3-5 limit per speaker) 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments fromthe public. 

 
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public 
comment period.  Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at 
the beginning of each regular monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of 
thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at 
which they wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting. 
Each speaker shall clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak 
on the signup sheet. This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of 
those rules, which I wish to remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their 

remarks by stating their name and address. 
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate. Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members. Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners. 

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics. The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic. 

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following: matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 3 

ITEM: Departmental Information Update (EMS) 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 

EMS Director Jennifer O’Neal will provide a Departmental status and informational update to 
the Board. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 4 

ITEM: DSS Child Support Program Staffing 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 

DSS Director Clifton Hardison and/or DSS Deputy Director Lynn Swett will present the 
following slides to the Board regarding concerns about maintaining appropriate staffing levels in 
this program due to recruitment/retention issues and regional privatization. 



Staffing Crisis / Child 
Support Enforcement



NC General Statute 110.141

The County Commissioners have the authority to 
negotiate alternate arrangements for the 
administration of the Child Support Program in 
their County.



Washington County’s Child Support 
Unit

One Supervisor
Four Child Support Enforcement Agents
The program administers child support for 

Washington County and Tyrrell County



Supervisor Position Duties

 The supervisor position is responsible for planning, 
organizing, directing, evaluating the program, 
supervising administratively and technically the agents 
and clerical support staff. Employees may be involved 
with some direct enforcement work on the more difficult 
or controversial cases, but the majority of duties are 
supervisory and administrative. Employees resolve 
concerns and establish policies and procedures with the 
local judicial and law enforcement system.



Current Impact of Child Support 
Supervisor Vacancy
 Position has been vacant since July 8, 2022.  The agency has provided 

diligent recruitment efforts to wit:

 Position has been posted and advertised in various ways (Indeed, Local 
papers and surrounding papers, Child Support Statewide list serv, and 
Facebook) since July 13, 2022

 No applications from July 2022-February 2023

 One application that resulted in an interview in March of 2023.  Applicant 
declined as it would be a $10,000 loss of income from her present position 
as a child support supervisor for Young Williams.

 4/28/2023 received a resume from someone out of state, but after 
telephone contact, they were not willing to apply or relocate due to 
income.

 5/23/2023 received a resume from Indeed, Applicant decided not to follow 
through with application.

 5/24/2023 to present - Position remains posted 



Impacts to Community as a result of no 
supervisor
 This oversite responsibility directly affects the outcome of paternity 

establishment, child support order establishment, child support order 
enforcement and the collection of funds for the caretakers of children per 
the child support order at the local level.  The oversite responsibilities 
includes adhering to all federal and state laws governing this practice.

 Potential Delays with resolving issues with a case –Supervisor has authority 
to perform certain financial functions and troubleshoot that case 
management staff do not have the security rights to do.  If no supervisor is 
available, client services may be delayed.  

 Case management oversight is not occurring daily.  Supervisors in their day-
to-day operations review reports regarding cases on hold, undistributed 
funds, etc. that move cases along and avoid delaying funds to the 
custodial or non-custodial parents.  Lack of daily oversight delays service 
delivery on cases with issues.  The longer this position is vacant, the greater 
the chances of service delays to clients

 Cont……



Impacts to Community as a result of no 
supervisor con’t…
 Lack of daily training with staff to avoid service delays on cases

 Lack of general oversight on staff caseload needs/ client service needs/ general 
management of staff/ performance needs/ training enhancements 

 Currently Deputy Director is providing oversight,  including taking two days per 
month to attend court sessions and provide oversight to the cases being heard.   

 Deputy Director is working to provide both support to Child Support Unit and day 
to day operations of the agency, which includes financial duties, foster care audit 
duties, reporting to state auditors and monitiors, and responses to findings as well 
as general support to Supervisory staff on day to day functions of their units.

 The Supervision arrangement of using the Deputy Director is no long a viable 
option to continue, as it is not a long term solution to providing the daily support, 
training and oversight Staff and the general public needs for operation of the 
program.

 IF vacancies occur within the child support unit, there is no supervision to lead, 
offer assistance, train, or monitor the vacant caseload.



Recommendation:

 Due to the unavailability to precure proper supervision for the child support unit it is 
recommended that the county explore alternate arrangements for the 
administration of the Child Support Program through a private child support 
company, such as Young Williams or Veritas.

 Both of these companies are established in North Carolina Counties providing 
services for Child Support enforcement.



Private Contractor positives
 Staffing managed and maintained by contractor

 Cost of contract is reimbursable at 66%

 No impact to custodial/ non custodial parents in regards to the “handing 
off” of cases



QUESTIONS/COMMENTS??



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 5 

 

ITEM: Emergency Management Building Project/Government Center Discussion 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

County Manager Curtis S. Potter will present a status update on the SCIF funded Av/EOC 
building to the Board, including a recommendation to consider moving the facility to an 
alternative location due to ongoing delays and issues associated with locating it at the Airport as 
originally intended. 

 

Commissioner John Spruill also requested this item be added to the agenda for discussion about 
potentially including this project as part of a larger government center project discussion. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Authorize staff to work with the Facilities Committee, the Design Team, and other 
outside consultants as needed to investigate and pursue alternative EM facility site 
locations. 
 

2. Direct staff to bring a progress update or recommendation to the next regularly scheduled 
Board Meeting on November 6th, 2023. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 6 

 

ITEM: Employee Appreciation Events/Schedule 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

The Clerk to the Board or County Manager will present and discuss the upcoming employee 
appreciation event schedule recommended by the Employee Appreciation Committee 
summarized as follows: 

1. Fall Fling Employee Appreciation Event: October 20th, 2023 12PM to 3PM 
a. Catered lunch meal 

 
2. Holiday Meal - Employee Appreciation Event: December 15, 2023 

a. Either a breakfast from 930AM to 12PM; or 
b. Lunch from 12PM to 230PM 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Authorize staff to conduct the proposed employee appreciation events according to the 
schedule indicated, and to close all non-essential government offices to permit employees 
to participate during regularly scheduled work hours. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 7 

 

ITEM: Boards and Committees (Senior Advisory Council) 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

See the attached email from Senior Center Director Renee Collier who has recommended the 
Board approve the presented list of names to re-fill all of the seats on this advisory committee 
which is critical to the Senior Centers ongoing efforts to reestablish certified status. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Approve the list of names recommended by Senior Center Director Renee Collier 



From: Julie Bennett
To: Curtis Potter
Subject: FW: Senior Center Advisory Council Members
Date: Friday, September 29, 2023 2:08:47 PM

Here is Renee’s email re: Senior Center Advisory Council Members to be addressed under Boards &
Committees Monday night.
 
Kindest regards,
 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC
Clerk to the Board
Administrative Assistant to the County Manager
Motorsports Grant Administrator
 
Washington County Government
116 Adams Street
P.O. Box 1007
Plymouth, NC  27962
Ph:  252-793-5823
Cell:  252-791-2010
E-mail:  jbennett@washconc.org
 

 
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized State official. Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile,
health, legally privileged, or otherwise confidential information, including confidential information
relating to an ongoing State procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you have received this e-mail in
error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this e-mail.
 
 
 
From: Renee Collier <SCDirector@washconc.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2023 1:57 PM
To: Julie Bennett <jbennett@washconc.org>
Subject: Re: Senior Center Advisory Council Members
 

Good Afternoon Julie,
 
  After I have gone back over Vanessa's paperwork, all our recent members have served 2 terms or
are deceased which our by-laws prevents another term. We have to replace the whole council at
one time. I know that makes the board all go on and come off together, but because this is more

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


of an advocacy/representation group and not a board that makes actual decisions I think we will
be okay. 
 
The members are as listed below and their first meeting would be October 20 @ 9am. I do plan to
send them a formal letter once the BoC approves them.
 
Sandra Purrington
230 Downing Rd-Roper
 
Janet Norman
8395 Hwy 32 N-Roper
 
Ora Rowson
22 Mackeys Rd-Plymouth
 
Geraldine Davenport
1286 McNair Rd- Plymouth
 
Karen Clay-Respess
101 Quail Drive-Plymouth
 
Marva Redd
401 E. 3rd St-Plymouth
 
Thanks,

Elizabeth "Renee" Collier

Washington County Senior Center

PO Box 1007

198 Hwy 45 North

Plymouth, NC 27962

W-(252)793-3816

C- (252)505-1996

"Keeping Seniors mentally alert, socially involved and physically active"

From: Julie Bennett <jbennett@washconc.org>
Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2023 3:00 PM
To: Renee Collier <SCDirector@washconc.org>
Subject: RE: Senior Center Advisory Council Members
 
Renee’,

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
mailto:SCDirector@washconc.org


 
Since I have had so much trouble with committee software, a lot of my info is obsolete; however, please
see below, this will show that there were various terms…..2 year and 3 year.
 
Also, I do have where two new members were put in place in January of 2022.  Sharon McNair and
Jean Spruill but Vanessa didn’t say who the replace or what the terms were.
 
I hope this helps some.
 
 

Elizabeth Collier elizabethrenee1@gmail.com 14-Jan-13 13-Jan-15
Julius Walker Jr jwalkerjr45@gmail.com 3-Jan-11 31-Jan-13
Florence Woodley florencewoodley@changeme.com 14-Jan-13 31-Jan-16
Joyce Sexton joycesexton@changeme.com 9-Sep-11 30-Sep-13
Mattie H Downing mattiedowning@changeme.com 5-Jul-11 31-Aug-13
Susan Diane Bennett susanbennett@changeme.com 5-Jul-11 31-Jul-13
Elizabeth Bell elizabethbell@changeme.com 5-Jul-11 31-Aug-13
LaToya O'Neal latoyao'neal@changeme.com 3-Jan-11 31-Jan-13
William Mccray williammccray@changeme.com 3-Jan-11 31-Jan-13
Alexander Simm alexandersimm@changeme.com 3-Jan-11 31-Jan-14
Victor Armstrong victorarmstrong@changeme.com 3-Jan-11 31-Jan-13
Michael Todd-Stone michaeltodd-stone@changeme.com 3-Jan-11 3-Jan-13
Shonita Gibson shonitagibson@changeme.com 3-Jan-11 31-Jan-13

 
 
Kindest regards,
 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC
Clerk to the Board
Administrative Assistant to the County Manager
Motorsports Grant Administrator
 
Washington County Government
116 Adams Street
P.O. Box 1007
Plymouth, NC  27962
Ph:  252-793-5823
Cell:  252-791-2010
E-mail:  jbennett@washconc.org
 

 
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized State official. Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile,

mailto:elizabethrenee1@gmail.com
mailto:jwalkerjr45@gmail.com
mailto:florencewoodley@changeme.com
mailto:joycesexton@changeme.com
mailto:mattiedowning@changeme.com
mailto:susanbennett@changeme.com
mailto:elizabethbell@changeme.com
mailto:williammccray@changeme.com
mailto:alexandersimm@changeme.com
mailto:victorarmstrong@changeme.com
mailto:michaeltodd-stone@changeme.com
mailto:shonitagibson@changeme.com
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


health, legally privileged, or otherwise confidential information, including confidential information
relating to an ongoing State procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you have received this e-mail in
error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this e-mail.
 
 
 
From: Renee Collier <SCDirector@washconc.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 4:56 PM
To: Julie Bennett <jbennett@washconc.org>
Subject: Re: Senior Center Advisory Council Members
 
I'm not sure how to approach it. Vanessa had not been keeping the Council up to date so I am unsure how to
get to staggered terms, but I am required to have it for certification so I have to get it together for the October
deadline. I will try and look back through her files but there were many things thrown out by her.
 
Thanks!
-Renee
 

From: Julie Bennett <jbennett@washconc.org>
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 3:43 PM
To: Renee Collier <SCDirector@washconc.org>
Subject: RE: Senior Center Advisory Council Members
 
Hey Renee’
 
I need a letter or email from you to me asking the Commissioners to accept your recommendation of the
following (and list the seniors). Also, please list the term for each one.  I would assume they are
staggered so they all don’t come off at one time.  I’ll bring it before the Board on August 7.
 
Kindest regards,
 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC
Clerk to the Board
Administrative Assistant to the County Manager
Motorsports Grant Administrator
 
Washington County Government
116 Adams Street
P.O. Box 1007
Plymouth, NC  27962
Ph:  252-793-5823
Cell:  252-791-2010
E-mail:  jbennett@washconc.org
 

mailto:SCDirector@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
mailto:SCDirector@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and
may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized State official. Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile,
health, legally privileged, or otherwise confidential information, including confidential information
relating to an ongoing State procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you have received this e-mail in
error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this e-mail.
 
 
 
From: Renee Collier <SCDirector@washconc.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 3:11 PM
To: Julie Bennett <jbennett@washconc.org>
Subject: Senior Center Advisory Council Members
 
Good Afternoon Julie!
 
   We are trying to revive our Senior Center Advisory Council. What do you need from me for us to bring
our new members before the Board? We have selected the seniors and asked for their permission to
give their name to the Board.
 
Thanks!
 
 
 

Elizabeth "Renee" Collier

Washington County Senior Center

PO Box 1007

198 Hwy 45 North

Plymouth, NC 27962

W-(252)793-3816

C- (252)505-1996

"Keeping Seniors mentally alert, socially involved and physically active"

mailto:SCDirector@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 8 

 

ITEM: Finance Officers Report 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments presented for the Board’s review and approval.  (See attached) 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Approve the budget transfers and amendments as presented. 



























































































































WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 9 

 

ITEM: Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, County Manager/County Attorney, Finance 
Officer, or Clerk 

 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- NOTE:  The unapproved minutes from all prior meetings and the Department Head 
and/or Statistical Reports that would typically accompany this package will be presented 
at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting scheduled for November 6th, 2023 



WASHINGTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM STATEMENT 

October 2, 2023 

        ITEM NO: 10 

 

ITEM: Closed Session 

 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 

A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318(a)(3) (attorney-client 
privilege) and NCGS §143-318(a)(6) personnel). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	AGENDA
	ITEM 1 - Consent Agenda
	a) RESO 23-026 Opioid $
	b) RESO 23-027 Green Light Vets
	c) RESO 23-028 PK12 Change Order Inc
	d) RESO 23-029 Surplus RP
	e) RESO 23-030 Surplus RP
	f) RESO 23-031 Surplus RP
	g) RESO 23-032 Surplus RP
	h) SCADA Bids

	ITEM 2 - Public Forum
	ITEM 3 - EMS Update
	ITEM 4 - DSS Child Support Program Staffing
	ITEM 5 - EM Building/Gov Center
	ITEM 6 - Employee Appreciation Events
	ITEM 7 - Boards & Committees
	Item 8 - Finance Officers Report
	Transfers
	Summary Sheet
	Financial Statement

	Item 9 - Other Items
	Item 10 - Closed Session



